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Executive Summary

procurement process. In particular, projects related to China’s RMB 4 trillion ($585 billion) stimulus

package, healthcare reform, and other government-sponsored initiatives involve significant central and
local government funding. Understanding the policy background of China’s government procurement
procedures is critical for foreign companies in evaluating and targeting these business opportunities. This
memo is intended to provide a general overview of current government procurement policies, with a focus on
the various categories of goods and services that receive preferential treatment.

ﬁ sizable number of business opportunities in China are initiated and managed via the government

Key points

e The primary law that governs procurement practices in China is the 2002 Government Procurement Law,
which directs government agencies making purchases to only purchase imports when domestic goods and
services are unavailable or cannot be obtained under “reasonable commercial conditions.” Two recent
central-government notices, explained below, reiterate this preference for domestic goods.

e China has not joined the World Trade Organization’s (WTO) Government Procurement Agreement (GPA)
and therefore can include preferences for domestic goods and companies in its government procurement
practices without violating WTO rules (nor can China benefit from GPA preferences). China committed to
join the GPA “as soon as possible” when it joined the WTO in December 2001 and submitted an initial
offer in 2008. This offer was viewed as insufficient by the current signatories to the GPA, including the
United States, and negotiations continue.

¢ Though the PRC Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM) and the National Development and Reform
Commission (NDRC) have both publicly stated that products manufactured in China by foreign-invested
enterprises (FIEs) should be considered “domestic,” China has yet to provide a precise, official definition
of what constitutes an “imported” versus a “domestic” product in its procurement rules, or whether FIEs
meet that standard. In practice, FIEs at times face barriers to participating in government procurement
opportunities.

e Domestically developed (or “indigenous innovation”) products and technologies are also favored in
government procurement measures. The national and provincial governments have created catalogues of
qualifying “indigenous innovation products,” which receive significant advantages in the procurement
process. As well, select newly commercialized indigenous innovation products can be designated as the
mandatory choice for purchase by government agencies for a fixed period of time, a measure designed to
enable these new products to gain a foothold in the market. Though the regulations do not directly state
that FIEs are ineligible, to date almost all qualifying products have been produced by Chinese-owned
companies.

e  Policy measures also favor energy efficient and environmentally protective goods in government
procurement of office equipment and supplies. The Ministry of Finance (MOF), along with NDRC and the
Ministry of Environmental Protection (MEP), has created two separate lists of qualifying products, from
which government agencies are generally required to select when making purchases. Many
FIE-manufactured products have been included in these lists.
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Advocacy

The US-China Business Council (USCBC) is monitoring developments in government procurement that affect
US companies in China and is providing constructive and balanced input to relevant PRC agencies. To further
improve the transparency of and ensure equal access to government procurement activities, USCBC
encourages the PRC government to

Submit an improved accession offer to the WTO GPA, including a more comprehensive list of government
agencies covered and a more timely implementation schedule;

Make all draft laws and regulations related to government procurement available for an appropriate
public comment period, including the draft Implementing Regulations of the Government Procurement
Law;

Officially clarify that all products and services manufactured or provided by FIEs in China are considered
“domestic” in government procurement;

Make the National Catalogue of Indigenous Innovation Products, and all current provincial catalogues,
publicly available;

Officially clarify that products manufactured by FIEs in China are eligible for “indigenous innovation
product” status and ensure all applications are reviewed fairly; and

Allow for open market competition by refraining from mandating compulsory purchases of specific
products by government agencies.

USCBC actively encourages member companies with concerns regarding government procurement practices to
contact its offices.
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Preferences in PRC Government Procurement:

Governing Laws and Policies

There are four major preferences in Chinese

government procurement, each of which is

analyzed below:

e A general preference for domestic products
over imported products;

e Preference for “indigenous innovation”
products;

e Preference for energy-efficient products; and

e Preference for environmentally protective
products.

Translations of key articles in the relevant laws,
regulations, and notices, including links to the full
text, are included in Appendix 1. Links to the latest
catalogues of certified products released to the
public are included in Appendix 2.

Several provinces and cities have also issued
policies that favor locally produced goods and
services in local government procurement. A list of
these policies is included in Appendix 3.

Preference for domestic products

The 2002 Government Procurement Law states that
PRC government agencies should purchase
domestic goods and services unless the required
items cannot be obtained within China or under
“reasonable commercial circumstances.” The law
applies to all purchases made by central, provincial,
and local government agencies. Since the launch of
the stimulus package, the central government has
reiterated this preference in two recent notices that
urge lower-level governments to improve
government procurement practices and closely
adhere to the preference for domestic products. In
April 2009, the State Council issued the Notice on
Further Strengthening Management of
Government Procurement, which reaffirmed the
provision of preferential treatment for
procurement of domestically produced and
“indigenous innovation” products. In May, nine
ministries including NDRC and the ministries of
Commerce and Industry and Information
Technology (MOFCOM and MIIT, respectively)
jointly released the Opinions on the
Implementation of Decisions on Expanding
Domestic Demand and Promoting Economic
Growth and Further Strengthening Supervision on
Tendering and Bidding for Construction Projects.
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The opinions stress the purchase of domestic
products in government procurement and commit
to the preferred purchase of indigenous innovative
products in government funded “key national
projects.”

Beyond the general preference for domestic goods,
government procurement of imported goods
requires special procedures and approval. In 2007,
MOF issued supplementary Administrative
Measures for Government Procurement of
Imported Products, which imposed new
procedures on government agencies choosing to
purchase imported goods. These procedures
included separate approvals from the government
bureau charged with supervision of the product
(e.g. from the Industry and Information
Technology Commission for personal computers
or machinery) and the creation of a special review
panel, including at least one lawyer, to vet the
purchase. Within these measures, a broad
definition of imported products was established:
“products entering the territory of China.” A
follow-up Notice on Related Issues to the
Administrative Measures on Government
Procurement of Imported Products from MOF later
clarified that goods produced in China’s bonded
zones should be considered domestic goods in
government procurement.

In principle, products manufactured in China by
FIEs should be considered domestic goods. But
some FIE-manufactured products, such as
products assembled in China from significant
imported components, or products manufactured
in China that carry a major foreign brand name,
have at times been classified by local government
officials as “imported,” placing those products at a
disadvantage in procurement. To date, no precise
or comprehensive definition of what constitutes a
domestic product has been established, but the
Circular on Support Policies of Medium- and
Long-Term Science Technology Plan 2006-20,
issued in 2006, states that the “Ministry of Finance
and related departments will set standards for
determining what is a domestic product.” Before
the passage of the revised Government
Procurement Law in 2002, MOF’s 1999 Temporary
Administrative Measures on Government
Procurement utilized a standard of less than 50



percent of total value added within China to
determine an imported product. In a public
statement related to the Opinions issued in May
2009 (see above), NDRC and MOFCOM
spokespeople affirmed that products
manufactured in China by FIEs are considered
domestic. The USCBC encourages PRC ministries
involved to further and more formally clarify this
important designation, in either the forthcoming
Government Procurement Law Implementation
Regulations or other related regulations. (For the
MOFCOM and NDRC joint statement, see
www.sdpc.gov.cn/xwib/t20090626_288017.htm.
The text of the comment follows: CGEATY KT K
AN 7 it PR R S TR PR T b e A RSN [ BB
W) V1R 1R 25 SR IBURF LA (P U S B < P B
KIGIH , R IA R i A A AR RO (K41 R
PR FTE (07 i )

China is not a member of the WTO’s GPA, which
currently includes 41 economies, including the
United States. GPA membership requires signatory
governments to use nondiscriminatory and
transparence procedures and offers them
reciprocal access to other signatories” government
procurement markets. China’s preferences for
domestic products and services in government
procurement activities is therefore not a violation
of WTO rules, but China also cannot enjoy
GPA-signatory status in, for example, US
government procurement. China committed to join
the GPA “as soon as possible” upon accession to
the WTO in December 2001. China submitted an
initial offer to join the GPA in December 2007,
which the other signatories to the agreement,
including the United States, found lacking in
several areas. In particular, the limited scope of
agencies and government-linked entities that
would be covered by the agreement and the slow
implementation schedule were of concern to other
GPA signatories. Negotiations continue. USCBC
supports the swift completion of these talks and
encourages the PRC government to submit a more
comprehensive and appropriately structured
accession offer.

Indigenous innovation product
certification and catalogues

In the Middle- and Long-Term Science
Technology Plan (2006-2020) and a subsequent
Circular of Supporting Policies, issued in 2006,
the State Council noted that domestically
developed or “indigenous innovation products”
would receive “preferential treatment” in

government procurement. The (Trial) Measures
for the Administration of the Accreditation of
National Indigenous Innovation Products, issued
the same year, established specific certification
criteria for evaluating and certifying “indigenous
innovation products,” including ownership by
the applying China-based company of core
intellectual property and trademarks. The
Evaluation Measures on Indigenous Innovative
Products for Government Procurement, issued by
MOF in 2007, laid out the specific advantages
that certified products enjoy in the government
procurement process, including a price
advantage and extra consideration in technology
and quality evaluations. Though the bidding
process for government contracts allows
competition, these advantages provide a
significant edge to certified products. Finally, the
Administrative Measures for the Government to
Initially and Selectively Purchase Indigenous
Innovation Products, also issued in 2007, require
government agencies to make initial purchases of
new products developed by domestic companies
that are not currently competitive in the
marketplace, but the development of which helps
fulfill national industrial policy goals. Products
are designated in the Catalogues of Indigenous
Innovation Products, and government agencies
are required to purchase those products for a set
period of time. The measures also allow
government agencies to select manufacturing
enterprises or research institutes to manufacture
certain items or perform research tasks deemed
important to fulfill national goals. USCBC is
concerned that provisions requiring mandatory
purchases by government agencies of certain
products may limit market competition.

Several provincial and municipal Science and
Technology Commissions have issued initial
catalogues of certified “indigenous innovation
products,” and many are holding successive
rounds of product evaluation for inclusion in
future editions. Catalogues are first posted for
public notice before taking effect and are
generally valid for three years. Though some
FIE-produced goods were included in early
catalogues, notably that of Xiamen municipality,
almost all recent catalogues have not included
any FIE products. To date, only the Beijing
municipal government has completed several
separate catalogues of products required for
initial purchase in government procurement. In
May 2009, media reports indicated that the
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Ministry of Science and Technology (MOST) had
completed the first National Catalogue of
Indigenous Innovative Products, comprising
some 243 products. This catalogue has not yet
been released to the public. USCBC encourages
the PRC government to release the national
catalogue to the public and to clarify that
products of FIEs are eligible for indigenous
innovation product status and to provide a level
playing field for all products that seek to gain
this designation.

A full list and links to the catalogues of certified
products currently available to the public are
included in Appendix 2.

Energy-efficient
product certification and lists

At the end of 2004, MOF and NDRC jointly
released the Implementation Opinions on
Government Procurement of Energy Efficient
Products, which has been in force nationwide since
2007. The opinion requires government
departments that use state funds to prioritize the
purchase of goods from the energy-efficient
products list. For certain types of energy-efficient
products with numerous suppliers, procurement of
products from the list is mandatory — government
agencies must select products on the lists. The
requirements for inclusion on the list are fairly
vague and general, however. The list of certified
products has been expanded and adjusted several
times, with the sixth and latest iteration issued for
public comment in June 2009. (Lists are made
public for a month to allow for complaints to be
raised and then take effect.) Products included on
this list are generally light industrial goods such as
general office equipment, air conditioners, lighting
products, TVs, water heaters, personal computers
(PCs), washing machines, power switches,
projectors, and shower and bath equipment.
Numerous FIE-made products are on this list.

A link to the latest available list of certified
products is included in Appendix 2.
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Environmentally protective
product certification and lists

In 2006, MOF and MEP jointly issued the Opinions
on Implementation of Government Procurement of
Environmentally Labeled Products, which took
effect on January 1, 2007. The opinions state that
government agencies should prioritize
procurement of products listed in the Catalogue of
Government Procurement of Environmentally
Labeled Products. The list of certified products has
been expanded and adjusted over time, with the
fourth and latest iteration issued for public
comment in June 2009. Products on the list include:
general office equipment, light automobiles,
printers, fax machines, PC monitors, painting
materials, interior materials and facilities (wood
flooring, furniture, plastic doors and windows),
television sets, and solar water heating systems.
Several products made by FIEs are included in the
list.

A link to the latest available list of certified
products is included in Appendix 2.

“Buy local” policies at the provincial
and municipal level

Several provincial and municipal-level
governments have also issued “buy local” policies
to encourage or mandate purchases of locally
produced goods or services since the beginning of
the economic downturn. A brief overview of these
policies, including an analysis of products covered,
is included in Appendix 3. This list includes only
formal, publicly promulgated local preferences;
various forms of informal pressure to buy local
goods and services are also common in provincial
and local government procurement. “Local”
typically means products or services provided by
Chinese-owned companies or FIEs based in the
province or municipality, versus those provided by
Chinese-owned companies or FIEs located
elsewhere in China.



Appendix 1: Key Articles in Relevant Laws, Regulations, and Notices

(Items are in chronological order, all translations are unofficial, by the USCBC, and are intended for
reference only.)

PRC Government Procurement Law (2002)

s N R IR B BURF RIEE
www.people.com.cn/GB/{inji/20020629/764316.html

Article 10: Government procurement should be based on the procurement of domestic goods, projects, and
services with the exception of the following circumstances:

a. The goods, projects, or services that are needed cannot be obtained within the territory of China or cannot be
obtained under reasonable commercial circumstances;

b. The procurement is made for use outside the territory of China; and

c. It is otherwise provided for in other laws or administrative regulations.

B A BUNRIGN M RIEA RT3 TREFIRS . B4 FHIEKZ—RERSk:

(—) W EERIW BT TREE 55 A Hh 35 A ek SRR el o ik DL BRI i M 2 PRI s () i fEr
BEAMERI HEAT RO (=) HAbTEE ATBEEMA AT MAE R . BT ARA B LY. TRAMIRSS e, KK
FGEAT T E AT -

Implementation Opinion on Government Procurement of Energy Efficient Products (2004)
T BET™ i SR SR W S e R T
www.ccep.gov.cn/zcfg/ gife /25211 .shtml

II. All levels of government, public institutions, and collective organizations (hereafter referred to as
“purchaser”) conducting procurement by using government funds will give priority to the purchase of
energy-efficient products and gradually eliminate low-efficiency products.

T BREFEHR LA (LU SRR RN T B B8 AT RIE R, N4 8 S R g™
fh, B IIRARRERL™ o

2006-2020 Medium and Long-Term Technology Development Plan (2006)

EARPEKERENEARR BN E (2006 —2020 )
www.gov.cn/jrzg/2006-02/09/content 183787 8.htm

Section 8: Major Policies and Measures

(iii) Implementation and Promotion of Indigenous Innovation in Government Procurement

Complete the Implementation Regulations for the Government Procurement Law to encourage and protect
indigenous innovation. Set up a coordinating mechanism for the government purchase of indigenous
innovation products. Implement a policy of preferential procurement for purchases of high- and
new-technology equipment and products with autonomous intellectual property rights developed by domestic

companies. Provide policy support for enterprises purchasing domestic high- and new-technology devices.
Support the development of technical standards through government procurement.

IS T BRI it

3. SEhtife it A QUH FBURF R
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I (NI BURPRIGVE) S, sop ey B E 0% . L BUTRIE A F A0 s Lsl. x
| P Al T A R A 8 2 R B T e B R A R i, BURF S Tt B USR0S [ 7 e AR st
FHPCMBUR SR . ML BUFERIY, SCRFTR B bR HE

Selected Supporting Policies for the 2006-2020 Medium and Long-Term Science and Technology
Development Plan (2006)

T (ERP KRR R RARINE (20062020 5F) ) KETEEBIR
www.gov.cn/zwgk/2006-02/26 / content_211553.htm

Section 4: Government Procurement

(22) Set up a system utilizing fiscal funds to purchase indigenous innovative products. The Ministry of Science
and Technology together with other departments will conduct this evaluation, while the Ministry of Finance in
coordination with other relevant departments will set the criteria for approval of indigenous innovation
products and compile the catalogue for government procurement. Regarding key projects invested either by
the central government or local governments, the purchase value of domestic products generally should
account for more than 60 percent of the total amount.

(23) Give preferential treatment to indigenous innovative products by improving government procurement
review methods.

(24) Establish a government system for initial purchasing and ordering which will encourage indigenous
innovation.

(25) Develop systems to certify domestic products and review the purchase of foreign products. MOF, together
with relevant departments, will set the evaluation standards for domestic products. For products that can
neither be obtained in China nor acquired under reasonable commercial conditions (except purchased items
that would be used outside of PRC territory), confirmation documents will be provided by state certification
authorities before purchasing activities occur. Procurement of foreign products will help enterprises adhere to
the principles of independent innovation, acquisition, and absorption of core technologies, giving priority to
goods involving technology transfer to China.

(D) LI BE SR H EGUFT - iR . S H EEUFT S GERIRE, @A EARHERIPE A R . H
FHGRI T2 RS LTI R ATE . A BRI A EQRH - 3t TlE, Jhmatant. MBS R L
PRI IAESRAFICE (K A T AUHT ™ S e A, #fE BURERIW B BRI s (BURRRRE D, T3 &8 M. 18
| R 7 S 43 I R e AR, L SR L] — SO AR T B ALK 60%

(A=) BEBUFERIEES ik, 457 A B sl sefrid .
CADUD s SriUah B = BHT BOBUR B AT I

AT ENEA T SN & il BER A S AT B 7 il A% I o SR AR € rh e N RSN B BURERIBTR) HLE
PESEIE AR 7 ity o WA IO 2% [RIAT O 1 A A B SR A E At o SR N 0107 it A (358 A JE VR 3R sl e
EUAE B R A BRI (FE PP RBEAMERIERAN) o ARG SIITAAHT, 7 th E SAUSGAUEN LR T LA AT
FUEH o SRIGANE P SN, S AR Ak B 3 B0 s AR Do BRI U, DL SE I S5 18] B LEBA )™ i o

Opinions on Implementation on Government Procurement of Environmentally Labeled Products
(2006)

WA B PR R R R TR AR 5 7= it BURT SR I SE it ) 2 A
www.mep.gov.cn/law/gz/bmhb/gwygf/200611/t20061116_96090.htm
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II. All levels of governmental organs, public institutions, and organizational groups (hereafter referred to as the
“purchaser”) conducting procurement using government funds should prioritize purchase of products labeled
as complying with environmental protection and must not purchase products harmful to the environment and
human health.

S BHEFHG F AT ERAL (LU SRCRIIND) I BE B8 Sl AT RGN, BRSERIGIR B bR
it AN 35 A S N AR B (17 i o

Trial Measures for the Administration of the Accreditation of National Indigenous Innovation
Products (2006)

EXK B EQIFT ik e B B IMERT)

www.csoet.cn/n16/n1100/n38116/n38723 /205126.html

Article 2: National certification of indigenous innovation products will adhere to the principles of transparency,
fairness, and equality and be based on scientific evaluation. Accredited products will be given priority in
government procurement, procurement for national key projects, or other procurements using government
funds, and will be given further support in the accreditation process for new- and high-technology enterprises,
to promote of the commercialization of scientific and technological achievements, support industry
development policies, and to guide the whole society to support the development of indigenous innovation
products.

Article 4: Applications for national indigenous innovation products should meet the following requirements:
the product (i) is in accordance with national laws and regulations, and the industry-specific technology
development policy and other related industrial policies; (ii) the product possesses clear legal ownership of
independently developed intellectual property rights; e.g. the applying enterprise via its own technological
innovation activities has acquired full ownership of intellectual property in China, or the Chinese enterprise,
work unit, or citizen has by legal means obtained the China intellectual property rights or usage rights; (iii) the
product possesses ownership of an independent brand, namely the ownership of a registered trademark; (iv)
has a high degree of creativity and innovation: i.e., the mastering of core technologies, improving of product
functions by applying new technologies, or initially raising technological standards locally and abroad; (v) uses
a high level of technology when compared with similar products at an international level; (vi) the product is of
high and dependable quality, as evidenced through certification by the China National Certification
Administration or by its provincial subsidiaries; for products with special administrative requirements (such as
pharmaceuticals, medical devices, pesticides, measuring devices, pressure vessels, telecom equipment, etc.),
manufacturers must acquire product manufacturing licensing certification from the relevant authorities under
the State Council; certification must also be acquired for those products requiring compulsory product
certification; (vii) the product has a large potential market or strong economic prospects, or has the potential to
replace imports.

S B AR IAE TR AT A1 2 BREARIE. 20 00E 1HE 5K B FE0H 7 Sl 72 BUFR
W R R K T RER I S5 I B 8 BRI P AR SE I 3, TRAE BT SR AN GE (e HERHB SR B AL AAR 5 kAL
BORP 4TRSS, LISt SOfr B BRI A .

P IEAERE S B Q0 W, A LR &M o) RS ESE A, 25 A B 50 AR BUR
AFEARAR S ER . (2 7 BAT B BRI HABGRROUI R ™ b AT B BRI BUESR, gL
LT IEARCFESD, AERE I EI B PTAR  BURKTRIE R 32k B ) b [ Al il 7 51
2 RAE TR B AVESAT Fn U B A A AL . (=D 7T E R, BT ST 127 i T RS A )
PR (I 7 QU e B8 i A IR OB MISC B T 20 sl AT BRI . B ek fy i, fE4S
K M AT O AT 7 A MRAS R et 5 B 1 ks AR TR N SRR SE SR R BORFRTE. (T
PR EOARSEHE, ERIZ AT EBRUE K O8N P TR TR, R E SR AT B B B e B
A AR BRI TR ORI T B T E I S A ARG A LA AR I o e T T 5 R R T M A B SR
o (e BE2y. By dsbil, ARZY. TR EL HOUAES . WOREESE D WAURAT 55 B AT L A AT
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FCHEUR K7 St AE = VE AT s J& T S S it e = il AR R 7= iy, 2008 B R = i IE . (B PR AT
FE V1225 R AR IR T 7 i S5t e A Qi 1

Administrative Measure for Government Procurement of Imported Products (2007)
BURFRIGZE 7= i B INE
www.gov.cn/zwegk/2008-01/15/ content_858659.htm

Article 3: Imported products in this measure refer to those entering into the territory of China after the
procedures of Chinese customs declaration, inspection, and clearance and being produced abroad.

S =gk AN MEBTRREE L SRR L R I AR OGIR TN A [RIE A L™ B GBI b o

Evaluation Measures on Indigenous Innovation Products Government Procurement (2007)
B 2= BT R BURR L 5 ik
www.gov.cn/ ztzl /kjfzgh / content_883671.htm

Article 13: In projects utilizing the lowest price method of evaluating bids, indigenous innovation products can
be awarded a 5 percent to 10 percent price deduction.

Article 14: In projects utilizing the comprehensive evaluation method, increased factors will be provided to
indigenous innovation products, and in the auditing process, once basic technical parameters have been met,
extra points will be awarded in the technical and price evaluation process: (i) in price evaluation scoring, a 4
percent to 8 percent additional score can be provided to indigenous innovation products; (ii) in technical
evaluation scoring, a 4 percent to 8 percent additional score can be provided to indigenous innovation
products.

Article 15: For projects utilizing the cost performance comparison evaluation method, indigenous innovation
products will receive new evaluation parameters and a certain price range deduction. Based on the same
principles set forth in Article 14, in technical evaluation scoring indigenous innovation products will receive
increased evaluation scores; and a deduction of 4 percent to 8 percent will be made to the tendered price of
indigenous innovation products.

Article 16: For projects utilizing the competitive negotiation and price quotation method, the requirement for
products to possess indigenous innovation should be included in the negotiation and quote content. In
situations where the indigenous innovation product meets the need, quality, and service requirements, as long
as the price submitted for the indigenous innovation product does not exceed between 5 percent to 10 percent
of the lowest price submitted for regular products, the company providing the indigenous innovation product
should be awarded the contract.

Bt =4 RMRACPPER APPSO H % 8 QU™ i ] ARV I X BRI 45 T 5% ~10 %6 i 5 AN ZE )
(AgiE{E

FHPUS KNG VPIEVPARIIH , X F Q0™ 5h B 880 A SR P A3, FRAEVPHTIN, AR S AL
AREAFRIRTEE T, M BRMMAREITH 4% T SN T LRI G M PERIs, aTEU B 6085
PR G TR VPRR BB 4% ~8% MRBEAGERIMN Sy () FEHORVEbRIIh,  nTLON B E00H ™ g THRORVE
PRI A 496 ~8 % M FEANE [N 3 o

FTugc SRR EEPFRRAOIH , % B = QUH™ ST B EHT R B E MG T e W A ER . 42

FAPISEPTR RN, FEBCRVFARIUH N B EEDH s VP 3 40T A EQDET S BRIk i 4% ~8 %6 i AN
(RIP R 1R o
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NG RAFEAEGAL W T SCRIMIN, N0 il (1 8 QDB ZORAE A W I N . R R
iRy B AR SSASE RSO0 T, H QU SR AN w0 2 RN (K B AR A 5% ~10% 19, WY 24
T i BN RS Ay AT R

Administrative Measures for the Government to Initially and Selectively Purchase Independent
Innovation Products (2007)

B 6= BN B AT W B Ak

www.gov.cn/ ztzl /kjfzgh / content_883647.htm

Article 2: Where state organs, public institutions, and collective organizations (hereinafter referred to as the
“purchaser”) use government funds to conduct initial and select purchasing activities, these measures shall

apply.

Article 3: The term “initial purchasing” in these measures refers to giving priority in government procurement
to the purchase of goods newly developed or produced by domestic enterprises or research institutes that are
entering the market for the first time, temporarily lack market competitiveness, fulfill national economic
development goals, and represent the development of advanced technology.

Article 4: The term “select purchasing” in these measures refers to utilizing government procurement to select
key research institutes or manufacturing organizations to research or manufacture products, technology,
software, and research tasks related to the research and development of key innovative products required by
the nation.

Article 5: Products to be initially and selectively purchased by the government shall be original and
independently developed. If such products are indigenous innovation products, the initial and select purchase
of those products” activities will be governed by the policies on government procurement of indigenous
innovation products.

Article 11: When procuring goods of types included in the initial purchase list, purchasers will select from the
designated products listed in the Catalogue of Indigenous Innovation Products and sign government
purchasing contracts with suppliers of those goods.

Bk

B LG Sl LA A Z (LU GERRRIG N AT B Bt 0T e B0 ATV ahiN),  1& HIA I M.
%E‘/\

AIPMEFRRE W, AR T N AV SR LR 2 BOT R (0, AR I584 71, BRF & HIRETH R EESR
+ AR SEBER A S T5 17 (K1 B T R CBA N GeRR e e ), 38 I BUR R Ty 2 H R N EBUR 1 5
RIGIIAT N o

FP%
AIPEITRRATI, FEFER T 5 BT A R E R QUH ™ i RS BRHEDITIRESE (LUR GEkiT 7™ i)
s M BURR I 7 T ) 4 A2 WE T R AN AU CBLR GERRT I SN D (474

SRS
PNRTIA I S ST PR EL AL i T M0 0, I G0 AR R
f7.

B

SR NI (477 it Jo T 7 O R, RIS CH SR AR AU 7 i, R BURR I & [R5 T4 fit
I R B
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Notice on Establishing a System for Compulsory Government Procurement of Energy Efficient
Products (2007)

B 45 Bt A0 o JT 50 T3 SLIBURY 58 SR DU 19 7= it 71 BE ) 38 40

www.gov.cn/xxgk/pub/govpublic/ mrlm /200803 /t20080328_32584.html

II. Scientifically formulate a list of energy-efficient products for government procurement

Products receiving purchase priority should meet the following criteria: first, the product is certified as an
energy efficient product by a nationally recognized energy efficient product certification organization; second,
the production capacity of the product is sufficiently large, the technology mature, and of reliable quality; third,
the product has a complete distribution system and good ability in after sales service; and fourth, the suppliers
of the product meet the requirements for government procurement in the Government Procurement Law.

Within the products receiving purchase priority, compulsory procurement will be instituted for products
meeting the following conditions: i) commonly used products, suited to a collective procurement process, with
economy of scale; ii) products with prominent energy efficiency functionality; iii) products with sufficient
supplier base, usually no fewer than five suppliers, to ensure sufficient competition and purchaser choice.

T RREAIE Y RE U R

OLOERIBI T R BBTIRT O T AU —Jr™ i T B SORA3 1070 e it ARE LRI UER TR B, 19 RECR
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0 B E  5 BEURE SRO 0 R SR 1Y 1026 P B

FEALSERIGIKITTRE ™ hh b, SAT SRR B I DL R S U s . ™ i A, &SRR, AR
MRERLES; —R™ TRERCR R, MR LR R N SR e, AT 5 K, il iR
FEFIIZEFE, RIGN AT B Rk £ 25 )

Notice on Related Issues on Administrative Measures on Government Procurement of Imported
Products (2008)
RT BURFRMHE 1 7= it B A 5K (] J A 38 46

www.moc.gov.cn/ zizhan/siju/caiwusi/ zhengfucaigou/ guanliwenjian/ 200808 /t20080807 512538.html

Section II. Territory classification for products in specially administered Customs zones

Products made in China’s special customs zones from imported materials do not qualify as imported goods
and are not subject to government procurement restrictions; and foreign products that enter special customs
zones for production or assembly and then pass through customs into China are defined as imported products.

v R IRBEANE IR R I X 5

UL I SR IR M A DX A Aol A 77 sl T (C0 40 IR A OB ) B 35 A A DX PR 7= i o AN A BURF R I 350 T
177 ity 6 AN N SR R M DX, P08 7 R DG T 8 i A SR IR Y DCE N 35 P At DX PR3 iy, 12
MUE R BE ™

State Council Opinion on Further Strengthening Management of Government Procurement
(April 2009)

55 B A A TR T HE— 5 ISR BUR K& 3 TR R L

www.gov.cn/zwegk /2009-04/13 /content_1283914.htm

Part IV: More measures should be taken to ensure mandatory procurement of energy-efficient products and
environmental-protection products; in cases where products to be procured fall within the categories of energy
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efficiency and indigenous innovation products, the list (catalogue) of energy efficient products and indigenous
innovation products for government procurement published by the MOF together with relevant departments
must be followed. The procurement of imported products must be strictly examined and approved; if domestic
products can meet the requirements, domestic products must be procured.

DU RO R 15 B 7 i AV IE S T S O™ i (K D RS FLSRIA P i i B T REFRORAN L Q5 7= b (1, e ARAT
WS 2[RI SR B T 1 AAT K1 RERA ORAT H 5 Q0B S BURERIBR B CHSRO o SR AZRE 17 IR, L
P it B 6 5 SRS R [ P 7 i o

Opinion on the Implementation of Decisions on Expanding Domestic Demand and Promoting
Economic Growth and Further Strengthening Supervision on Tendering and Bidding for
Construction Projects (June 2009)

RTERFEME LY KA FIRELFY K ISR EZHE P i TREE R br i TR K&
www.ndrc.gov.cn/ zcfb/ zcfbtz / 2009tz / 20090604_284262.htm

Section 2, (ii): Government-invested projects that fall under government procurement should purchase domestic
products only, with the exception of when projects, goods, or services can neither be obtained in China nor
acquired within reasonable commercial conditions. Imported product procurement must go through relevant
government approvals. For projects partially or wholly funded by the government, PRC authorities should
investigate legal liability, in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, for cases in which bidding
documents contain discriminatory provisions that designate foreign-branded products or functional parts at the
expense of domestic infrastructure.

T () BUNECSEIE JE T BUMRIEN, BRI SRR TR SR Ik gs A v I A TG R R EE Te Tk A B
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SRR St R 7 i S D E B PR L 7 B e A (R EAT O, AR SGIA A R U A ST
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Appendix 2: Currently Available Certified Product Catalogues and Lists
(As of June 2009)

Indigenous Innovation Product Catalogues

Beijing

Catalogue 1: 157 products, 01/14/2007
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901/1919102.html

Catalogue 2: 1816 products, 02/23/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901/7305164.html

Catalogue 3: 283 products, 05/05/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901/7569666.html

Catalogue 4: 607 products, 06/10/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901 /7742217 . html

Catalogue 1 (for initial purchase —compulsory): 20 products, 03/06/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901/7305249.html

Catalogue 2 (for initial purchase —compulsory): 11 products, 05/05/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901 /7569644 .html

Catalogue 3 (for initial purchase —compulsory): 7 products, 06/10/2009
www.bjkw.gov.cn/n1143/n1240/n1405/n1901/7742163.html

Fujian

Catalogue 1: 54 products, 12/01/2008
www.fikjt.cov.cn/newseditl.asp?news_xxbh=35157&news_xxlb=4

Guangdong

Catalogue 1 for public notice: 130 products, 05/27 /2009
www.gdstc.gov.ecn/HTML/zwgk/spgg/1243735296865-1629765023466186964.html

Hebei

Catalogue 1: 84 products, 10/07/2008
www.hebstd.gov.cn/tzge/disp tz.asp?id=1080

Jiangsu

Catalogue 1: 16 products, 03/02/2007

www.rgzfcg.gov.cn/ Article/Show Article.asp? ArticleID=254

Catalogue 2: 83 products, 12/29/2007

www.jstd.gov.cn/zwek/tzgee /20090417 /171800022.html

Catalogue 3: 77 products, 12/08 /2008

www.ccgp-iangsu.gov.cn/frontweb2/ petit_face/feshow.jsp?infoid=20081208171728&sort=%E5%85% A8
%E7%9C %81 %E6%B3%95%E8% A7 %84

Catalogue 4 for public notice: 136 products, 05/08/2009
www.jstd.gov.cn/zwek/tzgee/20090619/165302575.html

Qingdao

2009 Catalogue: 193 products, 02/2009
www.caigou2003.com/law /dfagui/200902/20090218151655 264436.html

Shandong

2008 Catalogue: 347 products, 12/18 /2008
www.sdstc.gov.cn/ShowContent?columnid=iroot1026012020&articleid=640480
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Shenzhen

e  Catalogue 1 for public notice: 122 products, 07/18/2008
www.szsti.gov.cn/index.asp?bianhao=5297

e  Catalogue 2 for public notice: 312 products, 12/18/2008
www.szsti.gcov.cn/index.asp?bianhao=5210

Xiamen

e  Catalogue 1: 29 products, 07/14/2006
www.xmjfw.gov.cn/xmi.nsf /ShowDetails?openform&ProgramName=1A0009&id=C40D622E45AE46784
82571C00033B340&CSiteTemp=1

Energy-Efficient Products List

e  Public Notice on Adjusting “Government Procurement of Energy Efficient Products List” (June 15, 2009)
www.gov.cn/ gzdt/2009-06/15/content_1340919.htm

Environmentally Protective Products List

e Public Notice on Adjusting “Government Procurement of Environmentally Labeled Products List”
(June 16, 2009)
www.sepacec.net.cn/zxdt.asp?lngid=114
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Appendix 3: Selected “Buy Local” Policies at the Provincial

and Municipal Level
(As of June 2009)

Selected “Buy Local” Policies

Document

Opinions on Promoting Economic Stability
and Faster Growth
(www.ahpc.gov.cn/information.jsp?xxnr_id
=10064045)

Opinions on Policies Supporting the
Development of Industrial Enterprises
(available at www.changchun.gov.cn/)

City/Province
Anhui

Changchun,
Jilin

Hunan Opinions on Promoting Stable and Faster
Development of Industrial Enterprises
(www.hunan.gov.cn/zczn/200902/t200902

04 _10388.htm)

Hubei Opinion on Promoting Wuhan Iron & Steel
Product Circulation within Hubei
(www.hbsme.gov.cn/page/web/1/208/200
902191441500042.html)

Opinions on Supporting the Development
of Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises
(www.nanjing.gov.cn/zwgk/zfgbh/0901/090
104/200902/t20090216 263058.htm)

Nanjing,
Jiangsu

Guangxi Opinions on Expanding Domestic
Consumption, Safeguarding the People’s
Livelihood, and Promoting Stable and
Faster Growth

(www.gxzf.gov.cn/gxzf zwgk/zwgk zfwj/z
zgqrmzfwj/200902/t20090212 106629.htm)
Circular on Further Effective Measures on
Maintaining Stable and Fast Growth of the
Industrial Economy
(www.shaanxi.gov.cn/0/104/6296.htm)
Implementation Opinion on Encouraging
Guangdong Top 100 and Dongguan Top
50 Private Enterprises
(www1.dg.gov.cn/publicfiles//business/htm

Shanxi

Guangdong

Ifiles/cndg/s1272/200902/131443.htm)
Opinion on Promoting Stable and Fast
Growth of the Industrial Economy
(www.henan.gov.cn/zwgk/system/2009/02
/09/010117869.shtml)

Henan

“Buy local” provisions

Gives government procurement priority to locally
manufactured automobiles, home appliances, and
materials used for publicly funded infrastructure
projects.

Requires at least 50 percent of goods for municipal
state-owned enterprises (SOEs) and major projects
to be procured locally and gives preference to
China FAW Group Corp. vehicles in government
vehicle procurement.

Announced local government and SOE
procurement preferences for locally manufactured
automobiles, office supplies, drugs, and any
products related to government official business
activities or used in large projects.

Wuhan Iron & Steel (Group) Corp. products should
receive priority in government purchases and large
construction projects within Hubei.

Prioritizes purchase of locally made
environmentally friendly and energy efficient
products, wireless local area network equipment,
and other goods in the provincial government
procurement catalogue; states that local products
should be favored in government-financed projects
and key technology upgrade programs.

Supports local purchases of mechanical and
electronic products of light industry, building
materials, engineering mechanics, and other
devices.

Promotes sales of industry goods for infrastructure
construction and industrial projects, as well as
medicines.

Prioritizes purchase of local products, especially
from companies in Dongguan, for infrastructure
and other construction projects.

Government procurement and fixed-asset projects
should prioritize local purchases of automobiles,
home appliances, environment conservation
equipment, pharmaceuticals, and information
system integration and software services.

Date issued

10/31/08

01/05/09

01/23/09

02/17/09

01/10/09

12/08/08

11/24/08

12/23/08

01/19/09

Note: These are only a few of the localities that have released “buy local” measures. Also, other cities have reportedly been drafting

similar “buy local” policies.
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